
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 

US .  District Judge / U.S. Magistrate Judge 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 



JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

This Court has j~uisdiction over this matter pursuant to 15 U.S.C. $8 45(a), 52, and 53(b), 



concert with others, he has fonn~~lated, directed, controlled, had the authority to control, 

or participated in the acts and practices of American Dream, including the acts or 

practices set forth in this complaint. His principal office or place of business is the same 

as that of defendant American Dream. Fernandez Salvador transacts or has transacted 

business in this district. 

COMMERCE 

7. The acts and practices of defendants alleged in this complaint have been in or affecting 

commerce, as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. $44. 

DEFENDANTS' COURSE OF CONDUCT 

8. Since about January 2003, defendants have advertised, offered for sale, sold, and 

distributed dietary supplements to consumers nationwide. Defendants' products have 

included, but are not necessarily limited to, Fat Seltzer, a purported weight loss dietary 

supplement containing psyllium, inulin, garcinia canlbogia, kelp powder, chromium 

chloride, and calcium. Defendants have offered and sold a one-month supply of Fat 

Seltzer for varying prices, fkom $69 to $299, plus shipping and handling. Fat Seltzer is a 

powder that when added 



www.fatseltzerxorn. Consumers have been able to purchase the product by calling a toll- 

fiee telephone number that appears in the commercial or fkom distributors. 

Fat Seltzer 

10. Defendants have disseminated, or caused to be disseminated, advertisements for Fat 

Seltzer, including, but not necessarily limited to, a direct response, 60-second television 

commercial and an Internet advertisement attached as Exhibits A and B. These 

advertisements contain the following statements and images (in italics), among others: 

a. Obese? Gaining weight? Here is the answer. 

Computer-generated image of a person's stomach, showing an accumulation of 
fat and the eflervescent eflect of the product over the fat, until it disappears. 
Running text over footage: "Detachment of fat" 

Lose up to 5 po~lnds a week. . . . Its natural ingredients, combined in an 
effervescent formula, help to accelerate the detachment of fat deposits 
accumulated in your tissues. 

-Exhibit A, Fat Seltzer commercial (translated fkom the original Spanish to 
English) 

b. Images of a considerably sizeable and artficial mass of fat placed on a weight 
scale that indicates a weight ofjvepounds. Image again of a jar of Fat Seltzer. 

This is the real size that five pounds of fat occupies in your body. Fat Seltzer will 
help you lose them, it's that simple. Incredible! 

-Exlibit A 

c. You will not regain the po~mds you lose with Fat Seltzer. 
-Exhibit A 

d. It is composed of a mixture of natural ingredients that, in combination with the 
fast acting effervescense [sic], will help you eliminate excess fat in your body. 

-Exhibit B, website http://www.fatseltzer.com (original in English) 
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e. With Fat Seltzer you don't have to do strenous excercise [sic] or unhealthy diets. 
You take 2 teaspoons a day, preferably with a meal, and you are on your way to a 
leaner body. 

-Exhibit B 

DEFENDANTS' VIOLATIONS OF 



c. Fat Seltzer does not cause substantial weight loss in a short period of time, for 

example, 5 pounds a week. 

Therefore, defendants' representations set forth in Paragraph 12 above are false or misleading 

and constitute deceptive acts or practices, and the making of false advertisements, in or affecting 

commerce, in violation of Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. $8 45(a) and 52. 

COUNT 11: Unsubstantiated Claims 

14. Through the means described in Paragraph 10 above, defendants have represented, 

expressly or by implication, that: 

a. Fat Seltzer causes weight loss; and 

b, Fat Seltzer detaches and eliminates existing body fat. 

15. Defendants did not possess and rely upon a reasonable basis that s~lbstantiated the 

representation set forth in Paragraph 14 above at the time the representation was made. 

Therefore, defendants' representation set forth in Paragraph 14 constitutes a deceptive act 

or practice, and the making of false advertisements, in or affecting commerce, in violation 

of Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §$ 45(a) and 52. 

CONSUMER INJURY 

16. Consumers throughout the United States have suffered and continue to suffer substantial 

injusy as a result of defendants' unlawful acts or practices. In addition, defendants have 

been unjustly e~lriched as a result of their unlawful. acts or practices. Absent injunctive 

relief by this Co~wt, defendants are likely to continue to injure consumers, reap unjust 

enrichment, and hann the public interest. 
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THIS COURT'S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF 

17. Section 130) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 53(b), empowers this Court to grant injunctive 

and such other relief as the Court may deem appropriate to halt and redress violations of 

the FTC Act, The Court, in the exercise of its equitable jurisdiction, may award other 

ancillary relief, including rescission of contracts, restitution, and disgorgement of ill- 

gotten gains, to prevent and remedy injury caused by defendants' law violations. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WI-IEWFORE, Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission, pursuant to Section 13@) of the 

FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. tj 53(b), and the Court's own equitable powers, requests that this Court: 

(1) Permanently enjoin defendants from violating Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC Act, as 

alleged herein, including committing violations in connection with the advertising, offering for 

sale, or distribution of food, drugs, dietary supplements, devices, cosmetics, or other products, 

services, or programs; 

(2) Award s u ~ h  equitable relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to 

consumers resulting from defendants' violations of the FTC Act, including, but not limited to, 

recision of contracts, restitution, and disgorgement of ill-gotten gains; and 

(3) Award Plaintiff such other equitable relief as the C o w  may determine to be just and 

proper. 

Dated: (&,c, \ \&. a 
I 004- Respectfully submitted, 

WILLIAM E. KOVACIC 
General Counsel 
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L I& 
LAUREEN KAPIN  bar 0768324) 
EDWIN RODRIGUEZ (DC Bar 446457) 
Division of Enforcement 
Bureau of Consumer Protection 
Federal Trade Commission 
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N. W. 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
(202) 325-3237 (telephone LK) 
(202) 326-2890 (telephone ER) 
(202) 326- 25 59 (facsimile) 
lkapin@ftc.gov 
erodriguez@ftc.gov 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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Exhibit A 



Federal Trade Commission 
Bureau of Coasnmer Protection 





pons 



Exhibit B 



Exhibit B 

FAT SELTZER is wholly owned by ADE, LLC. It is 


